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November 14, 2014
STATE OF MONTANA

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL ADDENDUM

RFP NO.: 15-3051V
TO BE OPENED: November 25, 2014
TITLE: Debt Collection Services
ADDENDUM NO. 3
To All Offerors:

Attached are written questions received in response to this RFP.  These questions, along with the State's response, become an official amendment to this RFP.

All other terms of the subject "Request for Proposal" are to remain as previously stated.

Acknowledgment of Addendum:

The offeror for this solicitation must acknowledge receipt of this addendum.  This page must be submitted at the time set for the proposal opening or the proposal may be disqualified from further consideration.

I acknowledge receipt of Addendum No. 3
Signed: ___________________________________

Company Name: ____________________________

Date: ______________________

Sincerely,
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Contracts Officer

	Question Number
	Page Number
	Section Number
	Questions & Answers for RFP 15-3051V

	1. 
	
	
	Q. Who is your current vendor (vendors) and has the current contract gone full term and have all the extensions been exercised?
A. NCO and Collection Bureau Services.  Yes.

	2. 
	
	
	Q. If the contract is awarded to a different vendor than currently contracted, will you be recalling the accounts previously listed to the current vendor and forward those to the new vendor?

A. YES

Q. If yes, what is the overall volume of these accounts (number of accounts and total dollars) that you anticipate would be referred to collections?

A. DEQ turned approx. $162,000 last year and approx. 100 accounts.  UEF 533 cases; total $3,300,000.
Q. If yes, will these accounts be allowed to be bid at a different rate, since these are what the collection industry calls “seconds” and are not primary placed accounts?

A. No


	3. 
	
	
	Q.
What is the total dollar value of placements now including any backlog of each existing agencies that utilize the current contract?
A. DEQ $911,991.00. UEF $4,800,000.

	4. 
	
	
	Q.
What is the total number of accounts for each of the agencies that utilize the contract including any backlog?
A. DEQ has 4 separate accounts at this time for 4 separate programs with approximately 390 accounts still owing. UEF average 550 cases

	5. 
	
	
	Q.
What other state agencies have agreed to utilize the current contract for debt collection services”

Does the State of Montana anticipate that other cities counties and municipalities will utilize the state contract and will individual Montana courts be eligible to utilize the State of Montana contract?
A. The State does not know who may or may not participate.  There is not requirement of use.  See Attachment B for history on agency use.

	6. 
	
	
	Q. Please provide monthly volume of accounts and dollar value expected to be placed with outside agency.
A. Yearly for DEQ. Last year we turned over approximately $161,900.00.  UEF 22 cases average monthly; $160,000 approx.  See Attachment B.

	7. 
	
	
	Q. What is the current vendor’s liquidation rate and/or what is the State’s expected liquidation rate.

Please provide the dollars placed within the last three years and the dollars collected in addition to their recovery rate.  


A. DEQ?  UEF 762 cases approx; $5,754,000 approx. referral over 3 years.

	8. 
	
	
	Q. How much has the State of Montana paid out to each of the incumbent for services?   
A. See Attachement B for 2013 payments.

	9. 
	
	
	Regarding collection of accounts that the State of Montana is referring for collections, please provide the following information:
Q. What is the estimated volume and value of initial placements of each type of debt and monthly placements?

A. DEQ turned over about 100 debtors for approximately $162,000 last year. UEF $4.8M; 542 cases current value.
Q. What is the average age of the accounts to be placed? What is the age of the oldest accounts? 

A. DEQ Average age is 1 year.  UEF 6 months.
Q. What is the average balance? 

A. See question #21

	10. 
	
	
	Q. What is the commission rate(s) charged by the current contractor(s)?

A. NCO Financial Systems, Inc. 20% Primary, 20% Secondary. Collection Bureau Services, Inc. 16% Primary, 22% Secondary.

	11. 
	
	
	Q. Does the state of Montana have any minority business requirements if yes; is there a website that identifies certified minority businesses?

A. No

	12. 
	
	
	Q. How will the answers to submitted questions be distributed?

A.  The Q&A addendum will be posted to the State website along with the RFP.  There will not be a distribution.  The link is below.

http://svc.mt.gov/gsd/OneStop/SolicitationDefault.aspx

	13. 
	13
	3.5 Scope of Work
	Q. Section 3.5 Scope of Work and Services makes several references to and SLA. Could you please provide copies of past SLA’s or draft SLA’s to be used under this contact with the specification that will be included in the SLA so that we can assess the work and price according to those requirements?

A. See Attachment A-Example Service Level Agreement posted with RFP and Q&A addendum.

	14. 
	
	
	Q. Will the accounts referred to the collection contractor(s) be send directly from the State agencies to the contractor(s) or through a centralized office?

A. Directly from State Agency.

	15. 
	
	
	Q. If accounts will be referred to the collection contractor(s) directly from the state agencies to the collection contractor(s), will a standardized (uniform) file format, layout and transfer process be used by all State Agencies, or will each be unique? 

A. DEQ has several different ways of submitting accounts according to the program.  Usually by an Excel spreadsheet. UEF; standardized Excel spreadsheet.


	16. 
	
	
	Q. What specific data elements for the debtors and the debts will be provided to the collection contactor(s)? Can you provide us with the copies of the file layouts so we can see the specific data that will be provided?

A. DEQ will provide the name, address and invoice number (if there is one) for the account.  We also provide a breakout of principal, interest and late charges owing if applicable and a copy of the judgment if applicable. UEF will provide tax id, customer #, item #, name address, city, state, county, zip, sum item balance, reason (int, nc fe, penalty, claim) phone number.

	17. 
	
	
	Q. Will each awarded contractor receive an even distribution of placements from all participating State Agencies, and if not, what criteria will be used to determine the distribution of placements to each collection contractor?

A. No.  There is no guarantee of use of any contractor.  Agencies can choose who they want to work with.

	18. 
	
	
	Q. Will Individual Income Tax accounts be referred to collection contractor(s)?

A. No.

	19. 
	
	
	Q. Will federal loan program (student loans) be referred to collection contractor(s)?

A. No.

	20. 
	
	
	Q. What is the volume of accounts to be placed (i.e. account total and dollar value total) by debt type and for 1st and 2nd placements?

A. See questions 9 and 65.

	21. 
	
	
	Q. What is the average balance for each of the debt types to be placed?

A. DEQ has 4 programs.  PWS has an average balance of $74l89 per account, WPB has an average balance of $887.33 per account, AEP has an average balance of $32,928 per account and Enforcement has an average balance of $32,928.50 per account. UEF; average annual amount of cases 6,396 and average annual amount $39,600.  UEF approx. $7,612.



	22. 
	
	
	Q. What is the percentage of recovery for the current contractors for each debt type and for 1st and 2nd placements?

A. Approx 10%.

	23. 
	
	
	Q. What is the percentage of recovery for each of the current / past collection agency vendors?

A.  Approx 10%

	24. 
	
	
	Q. Which state agencies authorize accounts for litigation?

A. DEQ and Dept. of Labor and Industry.  Other agencies may.

	25. 
	
	
	Q. What was the number of accounts authorized for litigation during the past 12 month period or fiscal year?

A. Zero for UEF. DEQ- 1 in last year.

	26. 
	
	
	Q. What was the total amount of money collected from legal accounts (assigned to attorney) during the past 12 month period?

A. None.

	27. 
	
	
	Q. What is the current / past contracted contingency fee rate percentage for standard collections and for legal collections and for 1st and 2nd placements?

A. See Question #10.

	28. 
	
	
	Q. What was the amount paid to collection service contractor(s) during the past 12 month period?

A. See Attachment B.  UEF; approx. $384,450.  DEQ paid approximately $17,545 in the last 12 months.

	29. 
	10
	2.4.2
	Q.  Can you clarify whether the proposals will be evaluated as a whole, or will different sections be evaluated by different evaluation committee members?

A.  As a whole by all committee members.

	30. 
	12
	3.1
	Q. Can you provide general information as to the number of accounts placed with an agency, on an annual basis and the average balance of the accounts placed?

A. See question #21

	31. 
	12
	3.1
	Q. Has the State utilized collection agencies in the past? 

A. Yes

Q. What type of recovery rate have you experienced?

A.  10%
Q. What is the current fee being paid for these services?

A. See Question #10.

	32. 
	13
	3.5
	Q. Please describe any in-house notice or collection procedures that the State currently follows.  

A. DEQ sends 3 notices attempting to collect the debt before we turn it for collection. UEF; Send lien notice, file lien, send collection notice, send courtesy collection notice, send to collection agency.

	33. 
	12
	3.1
	Q. Why is the State looking for a collection agency at this time? 

A. Current contracts are expiring.

	34. 
	
	
	Q. I would like to see average yearly collections and see, if you can show us, the fee that you are currently at and approximately how many accounts will be placed and age at time of placement.
A. See questions #9 and #10

	35. 
	
	
	Q. General Requirements… We have been vetted by the Federal Government and hold a GSA certificate.

As we are not members of the ACA but are vetted and holding a GSA certificate issued by the Federal Government, would this take the place of being an ACA member?
A. No.

	36. 
	
	
	Q. Does an attorney on retainer meet the legal representation requirements of the RFP for section 3.4.4?

A. No

	37. 
	
	4.7
	Q. 4.7 D refers to “each contract listed: is this statement referring to the top 5 contracts in 4.7C?
A. This refers to the complete listing of all contracts you list in your response.

	38. 
	
	4.7
	Q. 4.7 K references “investment consultant services” is this a typo from a previously executed RFP?
A. Yes.  It should state “debt collection services”.

	39. 
	12
	3.2
	Q. The State indicates that the Department of Labor and Industry and the Department of Environmental Quality have indicated the need for collection services. Please provide a breakout by each department showing the volume of accounts they anticipate placing with selected Offerors on a monthly basis.  
A. DEQ has 2 programs that place collections on a yearly basis,1 program that places collections based on whether an Enforcement action has been taken and 1 program that places collections based on whether their loan is in default.  PWS turned $989.00 last year, WPB turned $72,102 last year, AEP turned $68,848 last year and Enforcement turned $19,974 last year. UEF 21 accounts monthly, Approx. $160,000 per month.  See Attachment B as well.

	40. 
	
	
	Q. How long have your current Offerors provided collection services for your organization?

A. Roughly 7 years as of December 31, 2014.

	41. 
	
	
	What is the total number of delinquent accounts (including dollar amount) that are available for placement? 

 A. DEQ last year turned over approximately 100 accounts for about $162,000.  UEF 542 cases approx. $4,800,000.

	42. 
	
	
	Q. What is the average age of accounts that are available for placement by account type?

A. 1 year

	43. 
	
	
	Q. What are the fees utilized by your current Offeror for primary placement accounts and secondary placement accounts?

A. See Question #10

	44. 
	
	
	Q. What are the average liquidation rates (collection rates) that your current Offerors generate after collecting the account for 90-days, 180-days and after collecting for twelve months?
A. 10%

	45. 
	
	
	Q. On average, how much does your current Offeror collect on a monthly basis?

 A. DEQ Approximately $1,000 to $5,000. UEF approx. $34,700.

	46. 
	
	
	Q. What areas, processes and/or results are you looking to improve or enhance under this new contract?
A. Collection rates.

	47. 
	
	
	Q. Are any political subdivisions currently utilizing this contract for collection assistance?

A. See Attachment B.

	48. 
	
	
	Q. What percentage of accounts is currently in a collection litigation status with current Offerors?  We are trying to get a sense of the volume of accounts that will require this type of collection intervention.  

A. DEQ has 16 accounts that were in litigation before being turned over for collection.

	49. 
	
	
	Q. How frequently do you anticipate placing accounts with the Offeror (daily, weekly, monthly, etc.)?

A. DEQ;Several times a year. UEF monthly.  See Attachment B.

	50. 
	
	
	Q. On average, how many accounts (including dollar amount) do you anticipate placing with the successful Offeror on a monthly basis?
A. See question #39 and Attachment B

	51. 
	
	
	Q. What is the dollar amounts/contingency fees paid to your current Offerors over the last three years (please include by account type if applicable)?
A. UEF; approx. $96,000.  DEQ has paid approx. $43,400 in the last 3 years.  See Attachment B for 2013.

	52. 
	
	
	Q. What are your target or anticipated fee rates for this contract?
A. State has no target.

	53. 
	
	
	Q. Please Provide the following for the current vendor(s):
Name: See question #10
Fee Charged: See question #10
Recovery rates (amount collected/amount submitted): See question #31
Commission paid in the last 12 months or calendar year:

A. See Questions #10 and Attachment B.

	54. 
	
	
	Q. Please provide a breakdown of the accounts referred under the current contract by department: number of accounts, dollar value, average age, average dollar amount.
A.  See Attachment B and See question #65 and 21. DEQ turned over approx. 100 accounts for $162,000, average age is 1 year.  Average amount varies according to program. 

	55. 
	
	
	Q. Please provide an estimate of the accounts to be referred under the new contract (future flow of accounts by department): number of accounts, dollar value, average age, average dollar amount.

A. See Question #9.  See Attachment B.

	56. 
	12
	3.1
	Q. Please provide a breakdown of the different type of accounts that will be collected under this contract.
A. Worker’s Compensation penalties, Interest, and claims costs.

	57. 
	12
	3.1
	Q. Please provide anticipated monthly volume of accounts that will be placed for collection and dollar value.
A. See question #39  and Attachment B.

	58. 
	12
	3.1
	Q. What were the total fees paid to collection agencies last year? 

A. See attachment B for 2013. A. UEF Approx. $32,0000  DEQ approx. $17,545.00

	59. 
	23
	4.8
	Q. Many agencies use the services of letter vendors or skip tracing services to assist with letter production/mailing and locating debtors.  Does the State consider these services subcontractors?

A. State does not use these services.

	60. 
	12
	3.1
	Q. Are you currently using a third party vendor and how long have they been providing the services?  Do you have any results on performance to share with Offerror? Has the current contract gone full term?  If so, have all the provisions to extend the current contract been exercised? 

A. Yes.  10%.  Roughly 7 years as of 12/31/14.  All extensions have been exercised.

	61. 
	12
	3.1
	Q. How is this bid different from MSF 56 for Collection Services that was awarded Monday, November 25, 2013 to Collection Bureau Services and The Receivable Management Services Corp.?  

A. This contract will be for all agencies to use.  It will be a separate contract.

	62. 
	12
	3.1
	Q. Please describe the State’s attempts that are performed internally prior to placement? At want age will the Primary placements be assigned to the Contractor?

A. See question #32.

	63. 
	12
	3.1
	Q. Will the Contactor have any on-line viewing of the State’s information?  If so, please describe?

A. No

	64. 
	13
	3.4.4
	Q. Evidence of Attorney Involvement.  States that Contractor shall have an attorney on staff that is licensed to practice in the State of Montana.  Does this mean that if we use outside counsel we would be prohibited from bidding on this RFP?  Would it just reduce our score or is it a Pass/Fail?

A. Outside counsel is prohibited.

	65. 
	15
	3.5.3
	Q. What are the monthly placements eligible for the selected third part vendors? 
A. UEF; monthly average is 21 cases.
Q. What are the average balances?
A. UEF; average monthly $160,000. 
Q. Will the selected Offerors receive initial inventory?  How much can be expected? We understand that there is no guarantee, but we are trying to determine staffing, pricing asset utilization.
A. Inventory with the old contractor would be placed with the new contractor.

Q. What is the total amount outstanding with your current Contactor(s)? 
A. UEF; total outstanding is 542 cases; $4.8 M.


	66. 
	17
	3.5.5
	Q. Does the State have a preference as to how payments are to be applied to taxpayer’s accounts if they have more than one from multiple State Agencies?

A. Accounts should be separated and paid according to the ordering agency.

	67. 
	18
	3.5.6
	Q. According to K in this section, payoff errors that exceed thresholds are to be paid by the Contractor.  What are the State’s historical thresholds that have been established with its Contractors?

A. See question #70.

	68. 
	18
	3.5.6
	Q. Does the State have a historical record and/or goals for the Performance Standards as described in 3.5.6?  If so, please provide.

A. No.

	69. 
	17-18
	3.5.5h
	Q. This section appears to correspond to a similar section in the prior rfp (08-486d) from 2007. In the Q&A section of that rfp this section was eliminated. Will that be the case in this rfp as well?

[image: image2.png]Q62. 3.4.5(h) 11 Payments received b y the Agency prior to or within 10 calendar days from the date the receivable is
referred to the Contractor.

What if the payment is a direct result of contact by the Contractor?

A 62. Any payment will be considered direct result. Disregard 3.4.5 (h) If the collection is turned over to a vendor for
outside collection be considered as collected by the vendor.





A. Collections for which the State will not pay the Contractor include, but are not limited to:
Direct payment in full received by the Agency from the client prior to the client being contacted by the vendor within 10 days from the date the receivable is referred to the contractor.

	70. 
	19
	3.5.6
	Q. This section appears to correspond to a similar section in the prior rfp (08-486d) from 2007. In the Q&A section of that rfp this section was eliminated. Will that be the case in this rfp as well?

[image: image3.png]Q65. 3.4.6(k) The Agency shall provide the Contractor with the amount of the debt at the time of placement. If regular
financial updates are not provided by the Agency, the Contractor shall accrue and quote payoff based on SLA. Payoff errors
that exceed Agency threshold as established in their SLA, shall be the responsibility of the Contractor.

Please give a detailed explanation of “Payoff errors that exceed Agency threshold as established in their SLA, shall be the
responsibility of the Contractor.” What is an “Agency threshold”?

A 65. Disregard.





A. Section 3.5.6 K is restated as “The Agency shall provide the Contractor with the amount of the debt at the time of placement. If regular financial updates are not provided by the Agency, the Contractor shall accrue and quote payoff based on SLA.  Payoff errors shall be the responsibility of the Contractor.



	71. 
	26
	5
	Q. The line that reads: “The bid should be a Percentage (%) of the Anticipated Dollars Collected.” is confusing in this section. Is the “Anticipated Dollars Collected” a criteria for the cost proposal?

A. No

	72. 
	28
	6
	Q. Section 8 “Cost Proposal” reads: “Percentage of Dollars Collected Average of Primary and Secondary”. Is the score going to be based on the Percentage of Dollars Collected Average of Primary and Secondary? 

A. Yes

	73. 
	
	
	Does the State have any projected volumes for debt collection placements? Could the State provide the number, dollar amount and average balance of placements in 2013 and the number of agencies used to service these placements? 

A. See Question #2.  See Attachment B.

	74. 
	3
	3.2, 3.3
	Q. Per Page 3, it states 3.2 and 3.3 listed on Page 12 must be restated and addressed. We do not see a way to answer 3.2 and 3.3 as it falls under more of a detailed description of the type of account placement. Could the state clarify if 3.2 and 3.3 need to be addressed and answered within the proposal? 

A. Restate and “understands and will comply” is sufficient.

	75. 
	16
	3.5.4a
	Q. On Page 16, 3.5.4 under A, number 7 – “Type of collection made (public asst., tax, overpayment, etc).” Is the State asking for an individual report with the documented payments for each type of collection account placed?
A. Currently agencies get a monthly report for each of our programs showing amounts owing for each collection and a section that shows accounts that have been paid in full.

	76. 
	22
	4.7b
	Q. Currently has contracts with over 300 active clients. Does the state of Montana wish us to list every contract, contract demographics and all other information listed under D?

A. Yes.
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